
CITY OF PITTSBURGH/ALLEGHENY COUNTY 

TASK FORCE ON DISABILITIES 

 

January 24, 2005 

 

MINUTES 
 

Location:  First Floor Conference Room 

   Civic Building, 200 Ross Street 

   Pittsburgh, PA 

 

Members Present: John Tague, Chairperson, Liz Healey, Rich McGann, Jeff Parker, 

Penny Perlman, Katherine D. Seelman 

 

 

 

Members Absent: Paul O’Hanlon, Co-chair, Ruth Walter Brenyo, Aurelia Carter, 

Linda Dickerson, Milton Henderson  

 

Others Present: Barbara Hastings, Jerry Laychak, Richard Meritzer, Lisa Moses, 

David Rosenblatt 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mr. Tague at 1:12 PM.  The microphones were not working. 

 

Introductions: 

 

All members and guests introduced themselves. 

 

Approval of the agenda: 

 

The agenda was approved. 

 

Approval of November 2004 Minutes: 

 

The minutes were approved unanimously.  
 

Financial Report: 

 

Mr. Parker presented the Financial Report for December and January.  In addition to the regular 

$205.91 in monthly operational support in both months, in December we paid $255.38 to working 

Order.  They had requested a monthly retainer of $75.00 to maintain the list.  That payment was 

made in January.  $23,553.60 remains in the account.  After all encumbrances are subtracted the 

unencumbered amount is $9,559.72. 

 

Dr. Seelman asked if any money was set aside for the film project.  Mr. Parker said that money 

would come out of the $9,559.72.  $1,999.90 was unspent from the 2003 – 2004 budget and 

would be used fro the film.  He pointed out that there were no outstanding debts. 

 



 

 

Minutes of January 24, 2005 page 2 

 

Ms. Perlman asked if the Task Force members wanted to vote on a contract with Working Order 

to pay $75.00 a month.  It was moved by Dr. Seelman to CONTRACT WITH WORKING 

ORDER TO MAINTAIN THE CITY OF PITTSBURGH / ALLEGHENY COUNTY TASK 

FORCE ON DISABILITIES MAILING LIST AT A MONTH COST OF $75.00.  Ms. Perlman 

seconded this motion.  Ms. Healy asked if all the work they had done for the Task Force was in 

the budget.  Mr. Parker responded that the work they did for the Annual meeting was last year.  

He went on to say that the $75.00 would only cover the maintaining of the list; postage would be 

an additional charge.  Mr. Tague pointed out that working order employs the disabled and, as 

such, falls within our goal of encouraging jobs for the disability community.   

 

Dr. Seelman asked if we could have a statement of the work they plan on doing.  How many 

mailings are we sending out this year?  Mr. Parking said that they have Email addresses for some 

people and street addresses for others.  Dr. Seelman asked how they will update the email 

addresses.  Mr. Parker said they could send a response card in the next mailing asking for email 

addresses.  Dr. Seelman suggested that it would be interesting if the list could be sorted by 

category.  She requested that we hold this motion for a month and request a statement of work. 

 

Mr. McGann said that he has a problem when he tries to respond to all on our emails because 

some of the names are blocked.  Susan Golomb’s name is blocked and interfering with send out 

the emails. 

 

Dr. Seelman suggested that we have a representative from Working Order come and tell us what 

programs they are using.  Mr. Parker responded that the person in charge has serious 

communication problems.  He then handed out a list that contained all the names they do not have 

emails for.  Ms. Healy expressed surprise on how broad the list was.  Mr. Parker said that the 

Task Force could either update this list by email or hand write the corrections on the form.  Dr. 

Seelman asked if we had phone numbers for these people.  Mr. Meritzer asked if they could send 

out the meeting reminders.  Dr. Seelman said that this was a cost issue and staff should continue 

to provide that function.  Working Order maintains the list and sends out notices for special 

meetings.  Mr. Tague pointed out the Mr. Meritzer was the City’s ADA Compliance Officer and 

not just Task Force staff.  Dr. Seelman said we should be able to justify the use of Task Force 

funds.  She withdrew her motion.  Ms. Perlman also withdrew the motion. 

 

Children’s Issues: 
  

Ms. Healy met with Joe Camillius and two other people to discuss the planning process and how 

the Task Force could be involved.  The Task Force wants to do more then just comment.  Last 

year five public hearings were held but consumers were not included.  They discussed a more 

active role for consumers; a more holistic approach.  The Task Force involvement could broaden 

the input.  The Task Force could make consumers aware of the process through informational 

meetings which discuss both the potential and the process.  The process will look at the current 

fragmentation and how to unify services.  The State Office of Mental Retardation has a consulting 

group, OMR Consultant Group.  They are working with Christine Kennedy in Pittsburgh and 

with Johnnie Doyle and Deb Dalton on the State level.  The State will remind counties of the 

process on April 1
st
.  Counties have until July 1

st
 to complete their plan. 



 

Minutes of January 24, 2005 page 3 

 

Mr. Tague asked how this would tie in with the Task Force Strategic Plan. Ms. Healy replied it 

would impact our employment, communication and housing goals.  The Task Force needs to be 

involved in its capacity as advising County Government.  She will bring a motion to the next 

meeting. 

 

Dr. Seelman asked how the web page update was progressing.  Mr. Meritzer informed everyone 

that the page construction was at CIS and they were installing the information.  He said he would 

email the web page address to the Task Force members.  Ms. Healy suggested information on the 

hearing could be put on the web page. 

 

Mr. McGann suggested we identify different groups and how they relate to the disability 

community.  He is working with Pittsburgh Action Against Rape on Disability issues.  Ms. 

Perlman added the Federations of Families (Jeanne McCurley) deals with children and 

adolescence mental health issues.  They can be involved. 

 

Jeremy Smith: 

 

Mr. Smith gave a brief description of his background and abilities.  He makes sure the Design 

Review Committee reviews accessibility of new development projects.  He also follows up 

complaints and questions on accessibility in the built environment.  Dr. Seelman asked if he knew 

Paul O’Hanlon and Paul Dick.  She suggested he meet them both.   

 

Ms. Healy informed the Task Force that in the 1990s as part of the Americans with Disability Act 

municipalities needed a plan to bring their facilities in compliance.  Mr. Smith responded there 

was no way to track what was being accomplished because of the number of different city 

agencies that have facilities.  Ms. Healy asked if accessibility was an issue when determining 

whit facilities would remain open.  Mr. Meritzer explained that the city Strategic Planning 

Committee had been evaluating buildings and was preparing to develop a program to improve 

accessibility when the Act 47 process started and superceded these activities.  Dr. Seelman asked 

if Mr. Smith could take this issue back to the other Departments.  Mr. Smith pointed out that this 

was not part of his work plan because just tracking this issue would be a full time job.  Dr. 

Seelman said we should send a letter regarding this issue.  Mr. Smith pointed out that as facilities 

are renovated they could be evaluated to bring them into better compliance.  Mr. Meritzer said he 

would draft a letter on this subject for Ms. Healy’s signature. 

 

Ms. Healy pointed out that when there was a full time compliance position, the staff person 

worked with developers to insure accessibility.  Mr. Smith said he does that.  Mr. Tague asked 

about the amphitheater.  Mr. Smith said that project is not moving forward at this time.  Any 

major new project including City projects in the City goes through the Design Review Committee 

which advises the Planning Commission.  They look at accessibility issues.  Jerry Laychak asked 

if they look at visitability issues.  Mr. Smith pointed out that there is incentive to make residential 

properties visitable but they look at that issue before it gets to the Planning Commission.  Mr. 

McGann said that at the Conference for the blind at the Convention Center there were no Braille 

designations on the rooms.  Mr. Smith said he would discuss this issue with the Stadium and 

Exhibition Authority. 



 

Minutes of January 24, 2005 page 4 

 

 

Employment: 
 

Mr. Tague pointed out there was no chair for this committee.  Ms. Healy said the Executive 

Committee would designate a chair and design a process to set up committees.   

 

Dr. Seelman informed the Task Force that a Native Indian group does training.  Their budget is 

$15,000.  Tina and Maggie Castille (a student) will be local coordinators for this training. There 

will be a Public Hearing in May.  The coordinators and a graduate student will put together a core 

committee and set a day for the hearing.  There will just be one public hearing.  She thought the 

Task Force could use this project for employment issues.  This would be a local effort.  They 

could get Vocational Rehabilitation money.  Career Links, Vocational Rehabilitation, employers 

and people with disabilities could all be involved in this project.  Mr. Tague asked if the 

coordinators should come to the February meeting.  Dr. Seelman said March would be better. 

 

Mr. Laychak asked what happened to the group of employers who signed the hiring pledges after 

the 2000 planning process.  Ms. Healy said Judy Barricella should speak to that issue.  Ms. Healy 

said that project never really go off the ground.  The Employment Committee should consider 

pursuing this project. 

 

Dr. Seelman asked if there was information on unemployment in the disability community.  Mr. 

Tague said it was in the Census.  Dr. Seelman said the committee could look at this.  Joyce 

Bender is working on these issues.  

 

Voting Update: 

 

Mr. Tague pointed out the Mr. O’Hanlon was not here.  The Committee would be following up 

with Sean Fox to look at voting accessibility. 

 

Nominating Committee: 

 

Mr. Tague reported we had five requests for consideration and three other suggestions from 

Karen Feinstein.  It was decided that the requests from Karen Feinstein were too late to be 

considered.  Dr. Seelman requested that staff make copies of the resumes for the four members of 

the Committee (Dr. Seelman, Ms. Healy, Ms. Carter and Mr. Tague) and they will make 

recommendations at the next meeting. 

 

Transportation: 

 

Mr. Tague reported that phase one of the fare increases will not take place until March.  Cuts to 

Access will not take place until the summer.  The Transportation Alliance met with Secretary 

BIEHLER about $1 million designated for the disability community.  That money had been taken 

for mass transit and they are trying to get it back. 

 

Mr. Parker reported that the CAT asked Paul Skoutelas that the new T stations each have two 

elevators.  The original design had on elevator in each.  He agreed to redesign the stations. 

 

 



 

Minutes of January 24, 2005 page 5 

 

Housing / Consolidated Plan: 
  

Mr. Tague pointed out the Mr. O’Hanlon was not at the meeting.  Ms. Perlman reported that 50 

people testified at the Hearing on November 17
th
.  There was a large diversity in the testimony.  

Mr. Tague added there was little chance for input before the plan was drafted.  He expressed 

concern as to what they were going to do with the plan now. 

 

Ms. Healy announced the Chuck Keenan is working for the Housing Authority on disability 

issues. 

 

Disability Connections: 
 

 Mr. Tague pointed out the Judy Barricella was not at the meeting.  Mr. Tague said we need to 

send out notices of the meetings. 

 

New Issues: 
 

Mr. Meritzer explained to the Task Force that even though he had reserved the 1st Floor Meeting 

Room for February 21
st
 for the next meeting, some one else in the Department had superceded 

him and scheduled another event here.  Mr. Tague suggested the meeting be changed to February 

28, 2005.  There was general agreement.  Mr. McGann asked if we could meet in the evening.  

Mr. Meritzer said we could. 

 

Mr. McGann asked what had happened to the workshop with the American Red Cross at PNC 

Park.  Ms. Moses said she brought flyers, which were distributed.  The Drill was Saturday May 

7
th
 from 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m.  Mr. McGann asked if they were going to network with the deaf 

community.  Ms. Moses said Raymond Demichiei is planning a meeting next month.  Flyers will 

be sent out. 

 

Mr. Tague asked about the visitability ordinance.  Mr. Meritzer responded that the bill is now in 

the City Code and Senator Ferlo has been sent a draft of the enabling law.  It should be introduced 

any time now.  Mr. Tague asked that when we know the number of the state bill that information 

be sent out. 

 

Dr. Seelman pointed out that the Task Force was getting things done.  MS. HEALY MOVED 

THAT WE ISSUE AN ANNUAL REPORT TO THE CITY OF PITTSBURGH AND 

ALLEGHNEY COUNTY CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND COUNCILS.  Mr. Parker suggested that 

this could be part of the budget request plan.  The members then listed the accomplishments: 

 Appointment of Paul Dick to the Planning Commission. 

 Passage of the Visitability Ordinance. 

 Attendance at Public Hearings. 

 Completion of the Strategic Plan. 

 Gil Selders speaking at the Annual Meeting. 

 Working on Voting Accessibility issues. 

 Support for the Emergency Preparedness Drill. 

   



 

Minutes of January 24, 2005 page 6 

 

Announcements: 

 

There were no announcements. 

 

Public Comment: 
 

David Rosenblatt of the Service Employees International Union informed the Task Force that 

they were proposing legislation to County Council regarding mental retardation contractor with 

the County.  He asked what the process for getting Task Force support and if he could send the 

information to the Task Force digitally.  Ms. Healy asked if the Task Force could support this 

legislation.  Mr. Rosenblatt explained the bill would require accountability for Mental Retardation 

contactors with the County provide social services in the areas of work force data, abuse data and 

financial information.  Ms. Healy said the entire Task Force should take a look at this legislation.  

Executive Directors are getting large salaries while the staff is being paid minimum wage.  

Facilities look great but you do not know about the service level.    

 

Adjournment: 

 

It was moved by Mr. Seelman to ADJOURN THE MEETING. The meeting was adjourned at 

3:06 PM 

 

THE NEXT TASK FORCE MEETING: DATE:  February 28, 2005 

TIME:  1:00 P.M. 

LOCATION: First Floor Conference Room 

  Civic Building, 200 Ross Street 

  Pittsburgh, PA  15219 

 

 

 


